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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF NUPUR RECYCLERS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
Wie have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NUPUR RECYCLERS 
LIMITED (“hereinafter referred to as the ‘Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (Parent Company 
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance 
sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to a5 “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group at March 31, 
2025, and its consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in 
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
Wie conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Revenue Recognition ® Cut off procedures performed for year 
As the large portion of the ended 31% March 2025. 
Parent Company revenue is e Substantive verification of  sales 
from trading activties, there transactions. 
are risks related to e Analtical review of sales transactions. 

o Debtors analysis to ensure that all sales 
reversal are recognized appropriately. 

completeness  of  revenue, 
improper sales cut off, timing 
of recognitions, out of period 

. view . sales etc. Review that the revenue has been 
recognized in accordance with the 
revenue recognition policy of the 
Company. 

¢ Review sales booked by Company for 
unusual items, if any. 

o Verification ~ of  sales  through 
independent debtor confirmations. 

Other Information 

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the 

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made 

available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

will not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
When we will read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

The Parent Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Companies 
Tncluded in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the each Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating



effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Directors of the Parent 
Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of 
Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each 
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 matesial 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud o error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Parent Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists



related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other 
audifors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities 
in this regard are further described in section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report. 

We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Parent Company and such other 
entities incladed in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in estremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

(a) The consolidated financial statement includes the audited financial information of four 

subsidiaries, whose financial information reflects total assets of Rs. 9853.60 Lacs as at March



31, 2025, total revenue of Rs. 10719.94 Lacs, total net profit after tax of Rs. 1010.64 Lacs, 

total comprehensive Income of Rs. 1010.64 Lacs and net cash outflow of Rs. 337.22 Lacs 

for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These 

financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose reports have been 

farnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosure included in respect of these 

subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditor. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements above, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not further modified in respect of the above matters with respect 
to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3(sxi) of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a. 

b. 

Wie have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 
In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent 
Company as on March 31, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annesure B”. 
With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 
197(16) of the Act: 
In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has 
been paid by the Parent Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our



opinion and to the best of our information and according to the esplanations given 
to us: 

i 

ii. 

iii. 

iv. 

The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the consolidated 

financial statements 
The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
(a) The Parent Company management has represented that, to the best of 

its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually o 
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
botrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Parent Company to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Intermediaties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Parent Company Management has represented, that, to the best of 

its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or 
in the aggregate) have been received by the Parent Company from any 
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
musstatement. 

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company and its 
subsidiaties incorporated in India, has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in accounting software. During the course of 
performing our procedures we did not notice any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.



For KRA & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.020266N) 

Rajat Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 503150 
UDIN: 25503150 BMJBZW2386 

Place: Delhi 

Date: May 24, 2025



ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTOF EVEN DATE 
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Of NUPUR RECYCLERS 
LIMITED 
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report of even date) 

(sxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the record, the Group has four subsidiary companies, on which Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) is applicable. These subsidiaries have been 
audited by other auditors whose audit reports have been furnished to us and there are no 
qualification or adverse remarks in the report for these subsidiaries. 

For KRA & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.020266N) 

CITRNG 

Rajat Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 503150 
UDIN: 25503150 BMJBZW2386 

Place: Delhi 

Date: May 24, 2025



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE 

ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUPUR RECYCLERS 

LIMITED 

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 point (f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- 

section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of NUPUR RECYCLERS 
LIMITED (the ‘Parent Company) and its subsidiary (the Parent Company and its subsidiary 
together referred to as the ‘Group’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent Company and its relevant 
subsidiaties, which is the company covered under the Act, as at that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The respective Board of Directors of the Parent Company and its subsidiasies, which are the 
companies covered under the Act, as at that date, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the TICAT). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including 
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Parent Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting, and the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
Internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
Internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of Internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
audifors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Parent Company’s internal financial 
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company’s Intemal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s Internal financial controls over financial reporting include those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to eror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject o the risk that the Internal 
financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
o that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, which are the company covered under the 
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and 
such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

Other matters 

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it 

relates to four subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in Tndia. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter



For KRA & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.020266N) 

Rajat Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 503150 
UDIN: 25503150 BMJBZW2386 

Place: Delhi 

Date: May 24, 2025



Nupur Recyclers Limited
CIN: L37 t 00D L20t9PLC3447 88

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2025

Pa rticu la rs Notc

As at 11.03.2025 As at 31.03.202,1

({ in Lakhs) (t in Lakhs)

ASSETS

(l) Non-current assets

(a) Propeny, Plant and Equtptnent and lntangible asset

(b) Capital work in progress

(c) Goodwill on consolidation

(d) Financial Assets

(i) lnvestrnenls

(ri) Other bank balances

(ri) Other tinanclal assets

l9) Deflened Tax Asset

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financral assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ir) Cash and cash equtvalents

(iii) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

1.23521

3r5 58

322 46

t.107 57

265
r.r5t03

2l 1l
4, l 55.6 I

4.727 00

I .568 32

4r2 5l

2.739 97

821 38

r 0,269.r 8

14,424.79

915 04

340 86

314 22

r.282 19

2.65

t,3l.511

-,,,
4,1 91.03

)'76a ao

r.19593

748 60

2,t5097

4lt 31

7 ?6e,07
I I,j160.10

2

l
4

5

6

7

8

I

t0

il
t2

rl

EQtrtT\, .r\ND LIA lll LITIES
( l ) EQtrrl'\'

(a) Share Caprtal

(b) Other cqurly

Non-Contorolling tnterest

Non-cu rrent liabilities
(a) Frnancral ltabtltttes

( | ) [.ong lernr borrou'tngs

(lr) ()ther llnanctal liabrlttres

(b) Defened Tax Lrability

(c) Long ternl pro\ tstons

(B) Currcntliabilities
(a) Frnancral liabilrtres

(i) Short lenll borro\\,tngs

(rr) l-rade pavables
'fotal outstandrng dues lo mtcro and sntall

en lerpnses
'lotal oLttslandlng dues to other than n'llcro and

snrall enterprlses

(ri) Other flnancial lrabrlrties

(h) Shorl tcrt:r provrstons

(c) Other current Iiabilities

6.861 90 6.863 90

4.90(1 88 1.6q3 12.

ltlTg:7g_ 9S7,3?
815 41 625 55

9:182.87

727 96

t)9 66

21 93

859

894. I 4

(r l9 45

0 3l

t4

t5

l6

(2\

(A)
LTABII-ITIES

I 2,586.25

540 4l
86 14

r_l 08

639.79

715 45

0 t3

162 98

201 68

lt85l
I , I 98.75

14,424.79

II

100 73

t01 l5
-1,1 I 31

!,r83.0e
I 1,460.1 0

l7
t8

8

l9

22

2l
24

TOT^L I]QIIIT\ ,\ND LI,\BILIiIES

The accompanyrng notes are Integral pan of the Consolldaled Financral Statenlents

In tenns olour report ofeven date

For KRA & Co.

Chartered Accountants

For:rnd on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

NTIPTIR REC}'CLERS LINI I1'ET)

Rajai
Partner

Mernbership No 50.1150

t,DtN 25503 I 50BMJBZW2l86

Place. Delhi

Date: 2,1.05.2025

€*
Rajesh (lupta

Managrng Director

DrN-0 I 91 1985

d$rd-
Devender Kumar Poter

Director & CFO

D[]1867e601

gritt^
ShilPa Vernia

Companv Secretary

(M No - 10105)
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Nupur Recyclers Limited
CI N: L371 00DL20 I 9PLC3447 88

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2025

April'2.1- March'25 April'23 - r\'larch'24
Note ({ in Lakhs) (t in Lakhs)

I Revenue from operations

ll Other lnoome

25

26

I 5.81 I 27

918 r8

24.008 32

6r049

III Total lncorne (l + II )

IV EXPENSES

(u) Raw matenals consutled

/h/ Purchases of stock-rn-(rade

/rJ Changes rn stock-rn-trade

(d) Etr,ployee benefit expenses

fcl Frnance costs

(l) Deprecratron and arnortrzatton

/g) Other expenses

21

28

29

30

3t

32

33

t6,769.15

8.673.2r1

6.86t 85

( 1 .964 80)

409 96

186 t6

l6l 97

288 93

24,6r 8.8r

2.429 66

t9.765 t4

692 98

ll0 7:l

36 82

I9 il
306 78

Total Expenses (lV) 14,617.31 23,361.23

Y Profit before exccptional item a_nd tax (lll - !V) 2,152.t1 I,257.58

vl Exceptional item

2,t52.14 I,257.58vll Profit before tax (v+vl)

VIII lnconre Tax Expenses

f(,/ Current tax

/b) Taxatron lor earlrer 1,ears

34

515 94

2t 69

(-]2 5l)

525. I 0

189 98

l2 01

(6 55)

395.50
t'(, Deferred- ta\

'Iotal tax cxpense

IX

x
Profit al'ter tar (vll-vlll)
otr,.,: ior,rlr..lr.nsive Income

t,627 .04 862.08

Items that \vill not be reclassified to profit or loss

(r) Ilerneasulenrent gain/loss on delined benefit plans

(il) Farr valuatron ofequity rnstruments

( Ir ) Incorne tax relatrng to these tlent

Items that s,ill not be reclassified to profit or loss

(r) Exchange drllerences ln translaltng the flnancial statenlents of

\114 C2)

r6 5l

(5 55)

578 57

(64 79J

l0 54
fbrergn operations

(l:s8 63)

I,468.4 r

528.71

r,390.8sXI Totfll Comprehensive Income fo-r the year (lX+X)

XII Profit for the vear attributable to:

O\\ ner s ol lhe Conrpanr r.4.15 31

rql z0
I,627 .04

720 8l
t4t 26

862.08

xlll Totaicompi.rr"nilu. ircore i"i it. ven. otilirrrt^rri" io''
Orvn,ers of the Conrpany

Non-controll ing rnlerests

XIV Earnings pgl gquily s!.!i!.fe

Basic / Diluted (in Rupess)

The accompanying noles are integral part ofthe Consolidated Financial

ln tenns olour report ofeven date

For KRr\ & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ilajat Go
Partner

Menrbership No 503 150

L,IDlN. 15503 I 50BM.lllzW2l86
Place Delhr
Date 24.05.2025

slallenlen ts

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
NT]PTIR IIECYCLEIIS LIN,IITED

l.1867r
18t70

I ,J68.-l l

1.219 5l
l5l 32

I,190.8s

l5 2ll 105

aA"
Ra iesh Gupta
Managtng Drrector

DIN-01 94 I 985

.,Q,#
Companv Secretary
(M No - 10105)

,x--k
Devender Kumar Poter

Drrector & CFO

DIN-08679602
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Nupur Recyclers Limited
CIN : L37 1 00DL20 I 9PLC3447 88

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

April'24 - March'25 April'23 - March'24

({inLak@
A. Cash Flow from Operating activities:

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and arrrortization expense

Other Income

Profit on sale of investrnent

Profit on sale ofasset

Finance expenses

Liability written back

Other non-cash adjustrnents (Actuarial gain/loss)

Minority Interest

Goodwil I on consolidattion

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustrnents for:

Non-Current/Current fi nancial and other assets

Trade receivables

lnvetrtories

Trade payables

Non-Culrent/Current flnancial and other

Cash generated from oPerations

Direct tax paid ( rret of refurrds)

Net Cash from Operating $gtiy-itigg,'.:,',..,'{
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment

fi.866.621 (1,106.69)

2,152.14

t61.97
(7 4e.47)

(2.03 )

r86.r6

(0.22)

8.22

(8.24)

I,748.53

(4 r0.66)
(312.39)

( r,964.80)
(t t7.2e)
(r8e.r2)

( I,305.73)
(560.8e)

1,257.58

l9.ll
(se5.s8)

(2.34)

36.82

( r8.81 )

(s.55)

0.42

20.54

112.19

(te1.6e)
(s23.96)

692.97
(2,073.17)

5l1.97
(877.6e)
(22e.00)

( r05.80)

99 r .88

(404.ss )

595.99

Sale of Investlrrent in subsidialy

Loans and advatices given

Other incorre received

(434.83 )

(4t6.21)
142.07

Net cash used in Inn.ttilg-M
C. Cash Flow from Financing activities:

Net Proceeds (Repayment) of borrowings

Proceeds from issue ofshare warrant

Finance Cost Paid

Net Cash used in Financing Activities '.......... C

Net increase or (clecrease) in cash or cash equivalents (

Cash & Cash equivalents as at lst April
Cash & Cash equivalent.s--1s.a! 3llt Nlarch

Add: Bank Overdraft

( 108.97) 1,077.52

(9 r .49)

t,926.75
( r 9,s.76)

1,639.50

(336.0e)

748.60

412.51

(6_s. r0)

(35.85)

( l 00.es)
( r 30.1 2)

-) I -1.OO

183.74

't-u_.t -Qru-t, ngye111g-!t- o-!- qr-g-p-ord 
-o-t-9gq-s-14-,:fv-* - --,

Add_: Ca-_s!r3-c-g_q!-r ed 9r1 39-q-qIsilt-eI o-!..,b-{4Fty- -

Cash & Cash eqyival-ent! ls at 3llt Margh as per Ba-!3199 4t2.51

(5. r9)

570.05

748.60

e/^w .x{+'



Notes:

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Cash Flow Statement

b) Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

The accontpanying notes are integral part ofthe Financial Statetnents

ln tenns of our rePorl of even date

For and on behalfofthe Board of DirectorsFor KRA & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 020266N

*M@
Partner

Membership No. 503I50

UDIN: 25503 I 50BMJBZW2386

Place: Delhi

Date: 24.05 .2025

Rajesh GuPta

Managing Director
DIN-01941985

Shilpa Verma

Cornpany SecretarY

(M. No. - l0l0s)

Devender Kumar Poter

Director & CFO

DIN-08679602

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Balances with banks

Cash in hand

378.90

33.61

710.60

38.00

fotal 412.51 748.60

Particulars Short term borrowings Other liabilitv Total

As at April 01"2023
Net Cash Flows

Non cash changes/Fair value

25.00

1,322.41

25.00

1,322.41

As at March 31,2024 1,347.41 .4t

Particulars Short term borrowings Other liabilitY Total

As at March 31,2024
Net Cash Flows

Non cash changes/Fair value

1,347 .41

(9t.4e

1,347.41

(et.4e)

As at March 31,2025 1,255.92 I



Nupur Recyclers Limited
CIN: L37 I 00DL20l 9PLC344788

Notes t0 Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3l' 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Note l.
A Reporting Entity

Nupur Recyclers pnvate Limited 1'rhe Cornpanv'). was lncorporaled on January 22.2019 The Companv's matn bustness ts of tmporl oflerrous and non

ferrous rnetals lrom across the globe and processingitrading the satne on PAN India basis. The cornpany got converted anto the public limlted companl on

06 10 202 1

Basis for preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basrs The accountlng polrcres are applred conslslentlv to all the pertods presented

rn the flnancral statentenls. All assets and lrabrlrtres have been classrtled as current or non-current as per the Companl's nortral operattng cycle and other

cn{eilaassetoulrntheDrvrstonll ofschedulellllotheCompanresAct.20l3.Basedonthenalureolproductsandthetrtnebet$'eenacqulsltronof'assetsibr
processrngandthelrrealtsalronrncashandcashequrvalents.theCompanvhasascenatnedltsoperatlngcycleasl2lnonthslorthepurposeofcurrenlornon-
currenl classlflcatrOn of assets and llaLllttleS

The financial statements are presented in lNR. the lunctional currency of the Company. Itenrs included ln the financlal slatements of the Companl' arc

recorded usrng the currency olthe primary economic envlronlrent tn rvhich the Company operates (the'luncttonal currency )

'The consolrdated financtal statetrrents have been prepared on the followrng basts

r) The flnancral statements of the Company and lts subsldrary are cornb,ned on a ltne-by-lrne basrs bv addrng logether the book values ol'lrke itenrs ofassets'

Irabllrtres. rnconte and expenses. after lully elrnrrnattng tntra-group balances and lntra-group lransacllons tn accordance s'lth Accountlng Standard (AS) 2l -

''Consolrdated Frnanctal Stalelllents"

ti) The consolidated financial statenlents are prepared usrng unifbrrn accountrng poltcies lor llke transactlons and other evenls ln slmllar clrculllstances and

are presented in the sanre nlanner as the Companv's separate linancral statelnents
.l 

he subsrdian, constdered tn these consolidated llnancral slatements ls

Name of Subsidiarv '2, Sha rc CountrY of lncorPoration

Frank Metals Recyclers Pvt Ltd 30ozo lnd ra

Nupur Extrusron Pvt Ltd 50oro lnd ra

Nupur Busrness & Consultrng Pvt. Ltd

(Fonnerll Knolvn as Nupur Polynrers Pvt. Ltd )

I 00% lndra

Eliuo Business & Advisory Pvt Ltd. 109; lndia

D

Statement of compliance

The financial staremenrs have been prepared in accordance rvith lnd ASs notilled under rhe companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules' 2015 as

arnended frorn time to time . upto the year ended March 31, 2022, the Cornpany prepared its financial shtements in accordance with the requtrements ofl

previous CAAP. which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules' 2006'

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

lnpreparationofthefinancial statements,theCompanymakesjudgrnents,estimatesandassumptionsaboutthecarrylngamountsofassetsandliabilities 
The

esrimates and the associared assumptions are based on historical eiperience and orher facrors that are considered to be relevant Actual results mav differ from

these estinrates.

The estrnrales and the underlvrng assulnptions are revle\(ed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounllng esllmates are recognised in the period in rvhrch the

eslrmales are revlsed.

Signiticantjudgments and estimares relating lo the carrying alnounts ofassets and liabilities include uset'ul lives oltangible and rntangible assets' impairment

of tangible assets and intangible assets. provision for employee benefits and other provisions. recoverability ol deflerred tax assets and commitments and

contingencies.

STI N,t IVTA RY OF SIGN I FICANT ACCOI.I NTI NG POLIC I ES

Revenue from contract with customers

Companv has adopted lnd AS ll5 ,,Revenue fiorn Contract Wilh custorners" staning April 01. 20l8 Revenue fiom contract with customers is recognised

when the Cornpany satisfies performance obligation by transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Perfortnance oblrgations are satisfied at a

point oftime. performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point oftime when the customer obtains controls ofthe asset'

L

(i)

eAv 6N*.

C-



a) Sale of Goods

Revenue lrom the sale ol goods in the course of ordinary activities is rneasured at the thir value o[ the consideration received or receivable' net of returns'

trade discounts and volurne rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards ofownership have been translerred to the buver' recoven

ol rhe consideration rs probable, the associated costs and possible retum of goods can be estimared reliabl!. there is no continuing effeclive control over' or

managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be [reasured reliably.The timing of transfers of risks and rewards varies dependlng

on the individual terms olsale. usually in case ofdomestic, such transfer occurs when the product ts sold on ex-works: however' for expons transler occurs

upon loading the goods onlo the relevant carrier at the port ofseller. Generally for such products buyer has no right to return'

(ii) Foreign currency transactions and translation

The financial statements ofthe Cornpany is presented rn INR, which is the functional currency ofthe Companv and the presentatron currency fbr the flnancral

slatements.

ln preparing the financial slatements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency are recorded at the rates of

exchange prevailing on the date ofthe transaction. At the end ofeach reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencles are retranslaled at

the rates prevailing at the end olthe reporting period. Non-rnonetary ltems that are measured in terms ofhistorical cost ln a foreign currencv are not translaled

Exchange differences anslng on the settlement ofmonetary itenrs. and on retranslallon ofmonetary items are rncluded in the statement ofprofit and loss for

the period.

(iii) Property, plant and equipment

An itern ofpropeny. planr and equipment is recognised as an asset ilit is probable that future economic beneflts associated with the item will flow to the

Company and rts cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the cosrs incurred rnitially ro acquire an item ofpropeny' plant and

ecluipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add t-o. repluce part of. or servrce ir. All other repair and maintenance costs. including regular servicing'

are recognised ln the staternent ofprofit and loss as rncurred. when a ieplacerlent occurs. the carrving amount ofthe replaced pan is de'recognised

prope(y, plant and equtpment are stated at cost, less accunrulated depreciation and tmpairmenl. Cost includes all direct oosts and expenditures incurred to

bringtheassettoitsworkingconditionandlocationforirsintendeduse.Trialrunexpenses(nerofrevenue)arecapitalised 
Borrowingcostsduringtheperiod

ofconstruction are added to the cost oleligible tangible assets

Garn or loss arising on drsposal olan asset is determined as the difl'erence between the sale proceeds and rhe carrying amount ofthe asset' and is recognised

rn the statelrenl olprofit and loss.

(iv) Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation rs the systematic allocation ofthe depreciable amount olan assel over its useful life and rs provided on writlen down value basis over the uselul

lite as prescribed in Schedule ll ofthe cornpanies Act,20l3 unless otherwise specilied. Depreciable arnounl fbr the assets is the cost ofan asset less its

estinrated residual value. Depreciation on addition to/deductions lrorn fixed assels is provided on pro rata basis from/to the date of acquisition/disposal

Depreciatton on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready tbr their intended use

(v) Financiallnstruments

Financial assets and linancial liabilities are recognised when the Cornpany becomes a partv to the contraclual provisions of the instrument Financial assets

and liabilities are initiallv rneasured at lair value. Transaction costs that are directlv anributable ro the acquisltion or issue of financial assets and financial

liabilities (other than financial assets and fihancial liabilities at lair value through protir or loss) are added to or deducted lrorn the lair value measured on

rnitialrecognitionoffinancialasserorfinancialliabilitv Thelransactioncos(sdirectlvanributabletorheacqursitronoltlnancialassetsandfnancialliabilrtres

at ralr value rhrough profit and loss are imrnediatelv recognrsed in the statement ol'profit and loss

Effective interest method

The effective interesr method is a rnerhod ofcalculating the arnonised cost ola financial instrumenr and o{'allocating interest income or expense over the

relevant period. The ellective lnterest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payrnents through the expected lile ol the tinancial

instrument, or where appropriate. a shorter perrod

a) Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financral assets are subsequently nteasured al amortised cost if these flnancial assets are held wrthin a bustness ntodel rvhose objectrve is to hold these assels

rn order to collect contract,al cash florvs and the contractual ternrs of the flnancial asset give rrse on specificd dates to cash flows that are solelv pa)'lllents ol'

pnncrpal and Interest oll lhe prlnclpal alllotlllt otllstanding

N"**r
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Financiat assets measured at fair valuc

I--lnancral assets are rneasured at fair value through other cornprehensrve rnconre rl'these financral assets are held wrthrn a bustness model rvhose oblecttve ts

to hold these assets ln order to collect contractual cash flou,s or to sell these flnancral assets and the contractual terms ofthe tlnanclal assel glve rlse on

speclfied dates to cash flows that are Solely paynlents ofprtncrpal and interesl on the prlnclpal amounl outstandlng'

Ftnanclal asset not measured at amortlsed cost or at larr value through other conlprehensrve inconte ts carrled at fhrr value through protit or loss

lmpairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised lor financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income

Loss allowance equal to lhe liletime expected credit losses is recognised ifthe credit risk on rhe financial instrutnents has srgnificantly tncreased stnce tntttal

recognition. For financial instruments whose credit risk has noisignificantly rncreased since rnitial recognition. loss allowance equal to twelve months

expected credit losses is recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

'I.he Conrpany derecognlses a financral asset only when the contractual rrghts to rhe cash flows from the asset explre. or lt transt'ers the financral asset and

substantlally all rrsks and rewards of ownershrp of the asset to another entity. lf the Company neither translers nor retalns substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred assel. the company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an assoclated liability for

amounts it may have to pay. lf the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Companl

continues to recognise the financial assel and also recognises a collateralised borrowing ofthe proceeds received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equitY

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions ofa financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrumenl is any conrract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are

recorded at the proceeds recetved. net ofdirect issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initrally rneasured at lair value, nel of'transaclion cosls, and are subsequentlv measured al anonlsed oosl' uslnB the ef'fective

interesl rate tnethod

Interesl-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially rneasured at f'air value and are subsequentlv tneasured at anlorlised cost using the effecllve interesl rate

method

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Cornpany derecognises tinancial liabilities when. and only when. the Company's obligations are discharged. cancelled or they expire'

c) Derivative fi nancial instruments

. lhe Company uses certain derivative financial instruments. such as lorward currency contracts. to hedge its loreign currency risks Such derivatlve financlal

instruments are initially recognised at lair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value

-fhe lair values lor forrvard currency contracts are rnarked to market at the end ofeach reporting period. Derivatrves are carried as flnancial assets \Yhen the

fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negatlve.

(vi) Employee benefits

Defi ned contribution Plans

retirement benet'rt scheme

gr'\w ,\'st.gr-



Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schenres, the cost ofproviding benefits is detenrined using the Projected Unrt Credit Method, with actuarial valuatron being

carrred out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses ofthe net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognised irnnrediately in Other

Comprehensive lncome. The service cost, nel interest on the net defined benefir liability / (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs

Past service cost is recognised as an expense, when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs, or when any related restructuring cost or termrnatton benefits

are recognised. whichever is earler.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value ol'the defined-benefit oblrgatron. as reduced by the latr value

plan assets.

(vii) lnventories

lnventories are valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value (except scrap/waste which are valued at net realrzed value). "Cost" comprises all cost ot'

purchase. costs ofconversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to the present location and condition. The cost formula used is etther "tlrst rn

first out". or" specific identification", or the'average cost". as applicable.

(viii) Provisions

Provrsrons are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. which ts expected

to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated Each provisron is based on the best esttmate of the

expenditure required to settle the presenl obligation at the balance sheet date

Constructive obligation rs an obligatron that derives from an entity's actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current stalement. the entity has rndicated to other panies thal rt will
accept cenarn responsibilities: and

(b) As a result. the entity has created a valid expectation on the pan ofthose other parties that it will discharge those responsibilitres

(ix) lncome taxes

Tar expense tbr the year cornprises current and def'erred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs fror.n net profit as reported in the statetnent ol profit and loss because it

excludes itenrs of inconre or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes ilems that are never taxable or deductrble The

Cornpany's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws enacted in the country. Applicable Tax rates flor calculating currenl vear tncome

tax provision & deferred tax include Health & Education Cess which has been held to be deductible expense as per various .judicial pronouncetnenls.

Aocordrngly. provrsion fbr income lax ol'current year has been worked out after considering the deductible health & educatron cess paid during the vear

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying arnounts olassets and liabilities in the financial statements

and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted lor using the balance sheet liabiliry method. Deferred tax

liabilities are generally recognrsed for all taxable temporary differences. ln contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extenl that it is probable (hal

future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary dilferences can be utilised.

The carryrng amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at the end ofeach reponing period and reduced to the extent thal il is no longer probable lhal suf'llclent

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part ofthe asset to be recovered.

Def'erred tax assets and liabilities are nreasured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to applv to taxable income in the years in rvhich the temporary

difterences are expected lo be recovered or settled.

Current and def'erred tar are recognised as an e\pense or income in the stalement ol'profit and loss. excepl when they relate lo items credited or debited erther

in olher comprehensive income or directly in equitv. in rvhich case the ta.\ is also recognised in other comprehensive tnconre or directly in equtti'

(x) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents rnclude cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks, remittances in transit and other shon term highlv

liquid investments thal are readily convenible to know amounts ol cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk ol changes in value rvhere original

maturity is three months or less.

dN"^Ua
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(xi) Leases

CompanyhasadoptedlndAS ll6"Leases"stanrngApril 0l.202l.wrthinitral dateofapplrcatronberngApril 01.2021.

The Company applied lnd AS ll6 using the modified retrospective approach with a date ofinitial applicatron ofApril 01.2021 and accordrngly the

cormparative figures have not been restated. Moreover. there was no irnpact olinitial application on the balance oFretained earnings as ofApril 0 l, 202 I

The accounting policy ofthe Company on adoption of lnd AS I l6 is detailed below.

The Company as a lessee

At inception ofa contract the Company assess whether a contract is, or contain a lease. A contract is. or contains, a lease ilcontract conveys the right to

control the use ofan identified asset for a period oftime in exchange for consideration.

The Company recognises a right ofuse asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right oluse asset ts tnittally rteasured at cost' whrch

corrprises the initial amount ofthe lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or before the commencement date' plus any lnltlal dlrect costs

incurred and an estlmate ofcosts to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or lo restore the underlvrng assel or the slte on whlch lt ls located. less an\

lease incentives received.

The rrght ofuse asset rs subsequently deprecrated usrng lhe straight-line melhod from the cotnmencemenl date to the earlier olthe end ofthe useful ltfe ofthe

rrght oiuse asset or the end olthe lease tenr. The estlnated useful lives ofright ofuse assers are determined on the same basrs as lhose ofproperty. plant and

equlpment.

The lease liability is rnitrally rneasured at the present value ofthe lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date' discounted uslng the lnleresl

rate irnplicit in the lease or tfthal rate cannot be readily determined, the Cornpany's incremental borrowing rate. Cenerally' the Company uses lts lncremental

borrorving rate as the discounr rate The lease liability is measured at alnortised cosl using the elfecttve interest method

In cases ofleases havtng a lease term olless than one year, the amount oflease payment ts recogntzed as an expense on accrual basts

The Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it detennines al lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operatlng lease. To classifv each lease. the

Cornpany rnakes an overall assessment ofwhether the lease transfers substantially all ofthe risks and rewards incidental to ownership ofthe underlving asset

ll this is the case, rhen the lease is a finance lease: if not. then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Companv considers certain indicalors

such as whether the lease is lor the tnajor pan ofthe econolnic lifb ofthe asset.

Rental rncome from assets held under operating leases is recognized on straight line basrs.

(xii) lnYestmentproperties

propeny thar is held lor long tenn rental yields or lor capital appreciation or both, and that ts not occupled by the CompanY, is classified as investment

property. Invesrment propefltis measured initially at cost, including relared transaction cost and where applicabte borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is

capitalized in the assets carrying amount only when it is probable that future econornic benefil associaled rvith the expendrture will flow to the Companv and

costoftheitemscanbereliablvmeasured All otherrepairandmaintenancecostareexpensedwhenincuned

Investnrenl properrv are tleprecrared usrng wntten down value basrs over the uselul lrf'e as prescrrbed rn Schedule ll of'the Cornpanles Act. l0lJ unless

otherwise specrfied.

(xiii) Businesscombinations
Acquisition olsubsidiaries and businesses are accounted lor using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in each business combination ls

measured at the aggregate olthe acquisition date lair values olassets given, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners ofthe acquiree and equit.v"

interests issued by the Croup in exchange for contrirl ofthe acquiree.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and measured al cost. being the excess ofthe consideration translerred in the business combinatton

over rhe croup's interest in the net lair value of the identifiable assets acquired, Iiabilities assurned and contingent liabilities recognised where the fhrr value

ofthe identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the cost olacquisition, alter re-assessrng the fair values ofl the net assets and contrngent liabiltttes. the excess ls

recognised as capital reserve on consolidation.

)v d[-T,-*-
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Nupgr Recyclers Limited
CI N : L37 I 00DL2019PLC3447 88

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(All*mounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note- 4: Goodwill on consolidation

Pa rtlculars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

('ost 6f investnrent in the subsidiary

I-ess: Net asset on the date of acquisition

4.t41.20
(3.818.74)

2.797.20
(2.482.98)

Total 322.46 314.22

Note - 5: lnvestments

Pa rticu la rs

Non Trade lnvestment (Held at Fair value through other comprehensive income)

Investment in Equity Shares (Quoted):

14.16.335 (March 3l-2023:14.16.335) equity shares olOmaxe Ltd

As at 31.03.2025 As at 3I.03.2024

1.t07 .57 1.282.49

Total 1,107.57 1,282.49

1.282.49
Aggregate amount ofquoted investnlents and market value theleof

Agglcgate amount ol unqr.roted investments

t,t07 .57

Total I,107.57 1,282.49

Note - 6: Other bank balances

Pa rticu lars
Other fixed deposits with banlt

Earrnarked Fixed Deposits

-[)eposits ri,ith original rlaturity mttre than 12 nronths

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

2.65 2.65

Total 2.65 2.65

Note - 7: Other financial assets

duronA--

Page 1

Pa rticulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

LI nsecured, considered good

Security deposits

[-oans
'Iotal

13.01

r.138.02

12.36

I .303.4 I

.15 r.03 1.315.77



Note- 8: Deferred tax Asset / (Liability)

Pa rticulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Taxable temporary differences:
I"inaitcial instruments

Deductible temporary differences:
I)roperty. plant and equipnrent & intangible assets

ll.eti lement beneilt I iabi I iq,

tlnrealized plofit on closing stocl(

l- i nancial instruments

r 7.80 34.65

17.80 34.6s

6.78

4.01

25.|
3.0 r

0.92

2.79

3.0 I

38.9r 6.72

Total 2l.lt (27.93

Def'erred taxes in P/L & Other equi
Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Movement in Deferred taxes (YoY) 49.04 58.24

Recognized in P/L (32.53) (6.5 5 )

Rect,gnized in othel eqLrit\ ( r6.5 r 64.79
(49.04' 58.24

Note - 9: Inventories

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 3l .03.2024
(As prepared, valued and certified by Management)
(At cost or net realisable value, which ever is lower)

Stock in Trade 4.727.00 2.762.20

Total 4,727.00 2.762.20

Note - l0: Trade Receivable

0rq* ds4--

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Sccured. consideled gotrd

I lnsccured. considered good

Doubtf ul

r"568.32

I 1.98

1. t95.93

I 1.98

Total I,580.30 1,207.91

Less: plovisions fbl expected cledit losses ( r r.98) ( r r.98)

1.568.32 1.195.93



Tradp Receivable Ageing Schedule

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Undisputed trade receivable - considered good

Less than six monihs

6months-lyear
I -2 years

2-3 years

Morethan 3 yeals

933.42

196.44

413.l0
7.92

17.43

t.l I 1.63

4.96

4l .45

37.8_9

Total r,568.32 I ,I 95.93

Lindisputed trade receivatrle - considered doubtful
Less tlran six nronths

6nronths-lyear
I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

I t.98

Iotal I r.98

# There are no disputed trade receivables

Note - I I: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

l.Jalances rvith banks

- in Cullent accounls

Cash in hand

378.90

33.6 r

7 r0.60

3 8.00

Total 4t2.5t 748.60

Particulars As at 3l .03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

lntcresL Accrued ttn loan

Loans (lJnseculed" corrsidet'ed good)

Securit)' Deposits (Unsecured. considered good)

46.35

2.690.06

3.56

3 8.95

2.10tJ.46

3.56

Total 2,739.97 2,150.97

Note - l2: Other financial assets

Note - l3: Other current assets

dv o\A-9.

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Advance to Suppliers

Advances to Employees

Balance With Revenue Authorities

Prepaid Expenses

Other assets

124.03

1.29

644.70

2.07

49.29

94.59

L40

108.97

1.26

5.15

Total 82 r.38 411.37
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\upu r Recyclers Limited
Cl \ : Ll7 I 00DL20 I 9PI-C344788
\otes to consolidated financial statemcnts lbr the 1,ear ended illarch 31,2025
(.-\ll,amounts in Indian Rupees in Lahhs, unlcss othenvise stated)

\ote - l6: Non Controlling Interest

Particu lars As at 3l .03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Non-(lontrol I irrg Interest 815.47 625.55

'l'otal
815.47 625.55

(i) Summarised balance sheet information of subsidiary

\on-current asscts

Frank Mettrls Recyclers Private Limited
NLrpr"rl Polynrers Private Limited
Nupr:r Extrusion Private Linrited
Eligo Business & Advisory Private Limited

(lurrent assets

I-ranh Metals I{ecyclers Private Lintited
Nupr:r I)oly'mels Private Lintited
Nupul L,xtrusion Pnvate Linrited
I:ligo Busirress & Advisory Private Limited

'l'0tal assets (A)
Ir'rank Metals l{ec1,'clers Private Liniited

upr-rr Polynrers Private Limited
upur Extrusion Private Limited

I:ligo BLrsiness & Advisory Private Limited

Non-currcnt liabilities
Irrank Metals Recvclers Private Limited
Nupur Polynrers Private Limited
Nupur Extrusion Private Limited
l:ligo Business & Advisory Private Limited

(lu rrent liabilities
[]r'ank Metiils Recl'clers Private Limited
Nupur Polvnrels Private Limited
Nupul b.xtlusion Private L,imited

I:ligo [3usiness & Advisor], Private Linrited

'l'otal liabilities (B)
Frturl< Metals Recvclers Private Linrited

N r-rpur Poll,rrers Private Linrited
Nupr"rr Extrusion Private Lintited
Eligo BLrsiness & Advisory Private Limited

As at 3l .03.2025 As at J 1.03.2024

1.712.23

9.24

252.38

241.14

6.998.99

25.40

53 8.80

8.711.22

34.64

)! 1.6-)

779.94

586 99

20.9s

2.837.79

64.43

327.99

463.t 4

3.424.78

64.43

327.99

484.09

i. 134.28

25.3 n

t6.53

29.55

4.554.68

36.62

97.26

29.55

7 30.36
(r.3 r)

709.20

63.93

96.67

5.54

t.139.56
62.62

96.67

5.54

3.1 r5.r2

r Extrusion Private Limited
Business & Advisory Private Limited

Page 1-



(ii) S_ummarised profit and loss information

As at 31.03.2025 A 23 - March'Z{

f l rariti Merals l{ecr clers privare Linrrtecl
jNtrptrr Poll nters Privare Linrited

I 
Nrrpirr Errrusion Private Linrited

jF.ligo Business & Advisory privale Linrited

I

I l'rotlt/(loss) for the vear

ll:rarrk 
Mctrls Recyclers private Lirnited

lNupur Polimers Private Linrited

lNLrour Errrusion Pri\ ate Lirnited

lF ligo Busrnrss & Advisory private Limited
I

I

l-l'otal comprchensir c income for the .vear
Fririrk Mu.tals Rccvcler.s Privare Linrited
Nupur Polvmers Priuate Limited
Nupur Extrusion Private Lintited
EIigo Business & Advisory pnvate Lirnited

t0,324.t3

:ss.so

743.32

(3.78) 
I

(0.75 ) I

27 t.84 |

I

I

7$32 |

(3.78) I

to.zs )l
27 t.84 I

4,273.66

120.33

rs.so

2t t.46
(27.00)
(0.41)

r4.01 
]

I

\t 461
(2 7.oo) |

(0.4 r )l

r4.o I 
I

I

(iii) Summarised cash flow information

Particu lars
As at 31.03.2025 As at J l.03.202zl

l\et ( ash f rtim / (userl in) Opcrating .\cri, iti.*
ll rrrnk Nlcrals Rccr clcrs Private Lilnrted

lNtrpur l)olr ltrcls Prir.alc Linrited

I Nupur Extrusion Pr.ivare Linrited

lLligo Business & Aclvisory l)rivate Linrired
I

I

J\ct crtsh from /(uscd in) lnvesting Activities

ll-r'irnl, 
Metuls ltecrclels Pr.irate Lrrlited

I 
NLrprrl Poh nrers Prir aru L irnitcd

lNrrpur Iirtrusiorr I)rir lLte Lirrrircd

ll- ligo llusiness & AdvisorS pr.ivare Lirnirccl
I

I

l\et cash from / (uscd in) Financing Acrivities

ll-rirnk Merals Recvclcrs Privlte Linrired

lNLrpLrl 
Polr rrrels Privale Linrired

I 
NLrpur Ertrusion Prir ate Lirnited
l:ligo Busines: & Advisor-r privlte Linrircd

\et increase or (decrease) in cash or cash equivalents
Irrank Metals Recvclers Private Linrited
NLrpur Poll,nrers Private Lintited
Nupur Extrusion Private Linrited
Eiigo Business & Advisory Private Limitcd

233.76

0.05
(27,0s)

254.29

(1.432.78)

|7 t.65)
(499. r 0) I

I

I

688.1 3 I

(0.02)l
.c/e.44 

|

4t7.721

(5 r0.8e)
0.03

0.74

t72.91

NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA

0\n*9-

Cash & Cash equivalents as at Slst March as ner Balance Sheet
Frank Metals Recyclers Private Lirnited
Nupur Polvnrels Plivate Liniited
Nr-rpr:r Extrusion Private Lintited
F.ligo BLrsiness & Advisory Private Linlited

79 92

0.09

t.32
200.46

NA
NA
NA
NA

Page 2
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Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 3l .03.2024

'l'erin Loans
Sectiled
- Fionr Banks*

[ ] nsccured

- Fr6m Othersx*

1 r.86

528.61

16. l8

7 I1.78

540.47 727.96

x'Iernr Loan constitutes Car Loan taken fi.orn ICICI Bank Ltd in.luli,2023. bearing Interest rate iag.95%. repavable in 60 EMls & Tractor Loan taken tiont tJBI
in .lLrlr 2023. bearing Interest rale @) I 1.30%" repayable in 60 EMIs. Both the loans are securerl againsr the vehicle.
x* []nsecured Loan taken fiorn various corporates carlying interest rate of l2o/oto l4vo.

\ote - l8: Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 3l .03.2024
Security deposit received 86.24 129.66

Total 86.24 t29.66

Note - I9: Long term provision

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 3l .03.2024
Provisions lor Gratuitv 13.08 8.59

Total 13.08 8.s9

\ote - 20: Short term borrowings

Particulars As at J 1.03.2025 As at J1.0J.2024
l1i; tlnsecured

I Repayante on demand
I

l(a) From Other Parties
I

I 

Inter Corporate Deposir (Ref'er Note I )

I 
Loan lionr related parties (Ref'er Note 2)

(lurrent maturities of Long term borrowings

Secu red

Bank Loan (Refer Note I7)

I i nsecu red

Other Loans (Refel Note l7)

400.00

I12.54

4.31

t98.60

l]7.00

61.8i

3.9 r

416.7 I

'I'otal
715.,15 6 r 9.45

Note i: Unsecr-rred l-oan takerr fionr various corporates carr."-ing interesl rate olgyo.

Note 2: lJnsecured Loan taken fi'onr various related party calrving interest rate olB%- 19%.

dP^c'p-

Page 3
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\ote - 2l: Trade Pavahles

Particu lars AsatJl.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
'I-otai Outstanding dues olMicro and Small Entetprises*+
'fotal 

Outstandin-e dues other than Micro and Smzrll Errterprises

0. l3 0.31

I l7.l I

'l'otal 0.t3 t17.42

tt Tlrere are certain vendors r,vho have confirnred that the-v are covered under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act.
2006. DisclosLtres relating to dues olMicro and Srnallenterprises under section 22 ol'The Micro. Snrall and Medium Enterprises

Dcveloprnent Act. 2006. are given belorv:

Prinoipal amount and Interest due thereon rernaining unpaid to any supplier 0. l3 0.31

the arrount olinterest pnid by the buyer in terms of'section l6 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises
Developnrent Act" 2006. along r,vith the anlollnt o1'the pal,ment rnade to the supplier beyond the appointed day

The anrount olinterest due and payable fbr the vear oldeiay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed da1,6111nt the year) but without adding the interest specitied under Micro. Snrall and Mediunr
Iinterplises Developnrent Act" 2006

I he trnrount ol'intelest accrued and renrainrng unpaid dr"rring the accounting year.

['he arrrount o1'further interest remaining due and payable even in the sllcceeding years" until such date r'vhen the

intelest dues above ale actually paid to the snlall enterprise fbr the purpose oldisallorvance as tr dedr,rctible

erpenditure uudersection 23 olthe Micro. Srnalland Medir.rnr Enterprises Developnrent Act.2006.

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule*

Particu lars As at 31.03.2025 As at 3l.0J.2024

Due to VISME

Less tlran one )-etu

l-2 .v"ears

2-3 _r,ears

More than 3 years

0. t3 0.3 r

'l'ota 
I 0.r3 0.J r

Other

l.,ess than one year

l -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

I t7.l r

Total il7.11

* 'f here ale no disputed dLres fbr trade payable

dN*-
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\ote - 22: Other financial liabilities

Particu lars As at 3l .03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

.
Audit f'ee payable

lnterest accrued but not due

Salary payables

Expenses Payables

Other payables

4.04

35.18

28.38

23.95

7 t.43

3.74

44.78

t7.n

r2.50

22.60
'fotal

162.98 100.73

\ote - 23: Short term provision

Pa rtic u la rs As at 3l .03.2025 As at J 1.0J.2024
Plovision lor Incorne Tarr (Net olAdvance tax)

Provisron fbr employee benefits

I98.30

3.38

201.56

2.59
'l-otal

201.68 204.t5

Note - 24: Other current liabilities

Particu lars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Statutory dues

Advance fiom customers - Contract Liabiliw

26.46

92.0s

22.27

3 t9.07

'l-ota 
I r t8.5r 341 .34

e\* dP*}--
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Nupur Recyclers Limited
CIN : L37 I 00DL20 I 9PL C3 447 88
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 25: Revenue from operations

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 - March'24

(a) Sales of Products
(a) Sales of Service

15,516.21

3 15.00

23,988.82

19.50

15,831.27 24,008.32

Note - 26: Other Income

Note - 27: Cost of Materials Consumed

Note - 28: Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

*4" oF\4-

Particulars Aoril'24- March'25 April'23 - March'24
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost
Proflt On sale of Investment
Profit On sale of Fixed assets

Foreign Exchange FlLrctiation loss

Sales agency/ brokerage & Commission Service
Liability written back
Othel misc. irrcorne

149.41

2.03

I 85.63

L05

595.58

2.34

(r8.0r

25.50

s.0B

938.18 610.49

Particulars Aoril'24- March'25 April'23 - V[.arch'Z4

Opening Stock

Add: Pr-rrchases

Less: Closing Stock
8,673.24 2,429.66

8,673.24 2.429.66

Particulars Artril'24- March'25 April'23 -March'24
Irnport Purchase (Ferrous and Non-FerroLrs Metal)
Domestic Purchases

4,011.63

2,844.22

15,111 .81

4,641.27

6,861.85 19.765.14
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Details of purchase of stock in trade
Item Name

A I um in i um Scrap/lngots/Scrap 487.54 7.809.03
Shredded Stainless Steel Scrap 3,851.57 2,443.20
Zinc Ingots 311 .31 123.s3
Zinc Scrap 1.554.97 3,139.92
Brass Scr4p

33s.2s
Other l5 I .84 5,549.19
Clearing & Shipping charges and Freight Inward 444.62 3 65.03

6,861.95 19,765.14

Note - 292 Changes in stock-in-trade

Note - 30: Employee benefit expenses

Note - 3I: Finance costs

Note - 32: Depreciation and amortization

Particulars April'Z4- March'25 April'23 -NI.arch'Z4
Stock in Trade :

Opening Stock

Less: Closing Stock
2,762.20

4,727.00
3,455.18
2,162.20

1,964.90) 692.98

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 -March'24
Salary and wages

ContribLrtion to provident & other firnds
Contribution to ESICi Iltsurarrce Linked Expenses
CratLrity expense

Staff Welfare Expenses

386.39

6.68

1.01

5.06

t0.76

91.29

4.28

0.s0

3. r9

s.48

409.96 1r0.74

'24- March'Zl April'23 -March'24
Interest Expense

Bank Charges

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 - March'24
Depreciation on Propefty, plant & eqr-ripntent 161.91 r9.11

161.97 l9.l I

e;v dP.$-

Particulars

179.23

6.93
31.r3

5.69

186. r 6 36.82



Note - 33: Other expenses

Particulars Aoril'24- March'25 April'23 -March'Z4

I

I L ornrnrssron Expenses

lFreight Outward

Iw.igl,,r.',t Charges

lw"brit. Charges

lTlaveling expenses

lLoading & Unloading Expenses

I Advertisernent Expense

I 
Conrrnun ication E,xpenses

IBusiness Prornotion
I

lConveyance Expenses

lConsunrables
I

lPower and firel
t^

lSortrng 
Experrses

ICSR Expense

I Director's Sitting fee

lSecurity Expenses

ll,.trr.u,r.. Expenses

llnterest 
and Penalty

l Rent Expense

1F.',r,.,u." experses

lLegat & Professional Fees

lLubor.,, Charses

Packing Expense

Miscellaneous Expenses

Pollution charges

Office Expenses

Postage charges

Paynrent to Auditors#
Printing & Stationary
Repair' & Mair-rtenance- off-ice

Job Work
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Provision for doubtful debt

Bad Debts

5.10

27.00

0.7 5

0.83

3.08

5.19

0.s9

0.44

4.14

2.40

7.86

8.87

23.5t
3s.66
2.70

11 .69

0.70

0.02

19.58

I1.15
41.r8

0.17

23.32

0.34

2.19

0.07

4.23

0.s8

7.08

3.98

33-.93

1.45

r4.05

0.96

0.62

1.14

8.70

0.94

0.60

a.l2
1.12

s.80
11.54

2l .00

34.99

1.35

6.67

0.54

23.61

24.09
25.14

8.00

0.12
a) /)

0. r0

50.3 0

3.39

0.sB

3.24

0.3 r

8.40

il.98
5.1I

288.93 306.78

t+ t to Auditors com

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 - March'24
Audit Fee

Tax ALrdit Fees

).t)
0.50

2.89

0.s0

4.23 3.39

At, eI*+



Note - 34: Income Tax Expenses

A ieconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax
rate to the profit before income taxes is summarized below:

Note 35: Earning Per Share

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 -March'24
Current tax

Taxation for earlier years

Deferred tax

535.94
21.69

(32.s3)

3 89.98

12.07

(6.5s)

525.10 395.50

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 -March'24

lProfit before income taxes (A)
lTax Rate (B)

lTax Expense at Statutory tax rates (A*B)
I

Adjustments:
Add: Perrnanent difference on account of disallowance of CSR
expenses

Less: Taxation for earlier years

Less: SLrbsidairy profit taxable at lower tax rates

Less: Subsidairy profit (Non taxable)

Add: Profit on sale of subsidairy

Add: Other adiustment

2,t52.t4
25.1680

541.65

1l .24

18.62

(s5.0e)

8.68

1.257.s8

25.168%
3 r6.s r

8.81

12.07

(70.30)

I I 8.41

t0.01

Income tax expense s2s.l0 395.s0

Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 525.r0 395.50

A) Reconciliation Of Basic And Diluted Shares Used In Computins Earning Per Share

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 -March'Z4

Basic earnings per equify share - weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding (Nos) - Openiflg

68,638,995 4s.7 59.992

Add: Impact of shares issued during the year

Add: Bonus Share issued during the year 22,819,003

Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number
of eouitv shares outstandins (Nos) - Closins

68,638,995 68,638,995

Add/(Less): Effect of dilLrtive shares (Nos)

Diluted earnings per equity share - weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding (Nos)

68,638,995 68,638,995

B C on of Basic and diluted r share

Particulars April'24- March'25 April'23 - March'24

Basic and diluted earninq per share
Profit after tax 1445.34 120.82

Basic EPS (ln Rs.) / Diluted EPS (ln Rs.) 2.t1 I .05
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Nupur llecyclers Limitcd
CIN:LJ7l 00DL20 I 9PLC]J44788
Notes to consolidated financial statements for thc year ended iVlarch Jl,2025

(AIl amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherrvise statcd)

Note 36: Employee benefit Plan

(A) Defined benelit Plan

The defined benelit plan operated by' thc Group is as belorv:

Retiring gratuitl'

The Group has an obligatiolt towards gratuitl. a detined benetit retirenrent plan covenng elrgible employees. The plan provides tbr a lttntp-sunr

paynlent to vested enrployees at retirelnent, death while tn employntent or on ternrination ofemployment ofan amoullt equivalent to 26 days

salary payable tbr each cot.npleted year of service. Vesting occurs upon conrpletion of five years ol servtce. 
-fhe Group does not ntake ant

contributions to gratr-rity tiurds and the plan is unfunded. The Group accoulrts fbr the liability fbr gratuity benefts payable in the firture based

on an actuarial vahlation.

The defined benefit plans expose the Group to n numberofactuarial risks as below:

(a) lnterest risl<: A decrcase in tlie bond rnterest rate will increase the plan liability.

(b) Salary risk: The present value ofthe defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries ofplan partrcipants. As

such. an increase rn the salary of'the plan partrcipants rvill increase the plan's liability

(c) Longevity risl<: The present value ofthe defined benefit plan liability is calculated [ry reftrence to the best estimate olthe mortality ofplan
participants. An increase in the lif'e expectancy olthe plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Thc follorving tnble sets out the amounts rccognised in the tinancial statements

(ii) Change in fair value of plant assets during the year

a)*{-

in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) during the IN

Particulars As at 31.0J.2025 As at 31.0J.2024

Present value ol DBO at the beginning of'the 1,car lt l8 243

Past Service Cost 0.05

Current service cost 4.27 297

Itrterest cost 0.19 0.17

Acnrarial Ioss arising fionr changes in flnancial assuulptions 0.22 0.03

Actuarial loss arising fiom changes in experience ad.justnrents -s -s3

Benel'its paid

Present value of DBO at thc end of the year 16.46 I l.t8

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 Asatll.03.2024

Fair value ofplan assets at the beginning olthe year

lnterest inconre

Employer contribLrtrons

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end ol the year

(iii) Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.0J.2024

Present value oIDBO at the end of'the year 16.16 lr.18

Fair value olplan assets at the end ofthe year

Net Liability recognised.in the Balance Sheet r6.46 I l.l8
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(iv) Components of employer expense

Particulars As at 31.0J.2025 As at J1.03.2024
Current service cost 427 297
Past Sen,ice Cost 005
lnterest cost 0.79 0. I7
Expense recognised in Statement of profit t and Loss 5.06 3.r9

Other

(vi) Nature and extent of investment details of the ptan assets

(viii) Sensitivity Analysis

(B) Defined Contribution Plan

Provident fund and pension

InaccordancewiththeEmployee'sProvidentFundandMiscellaneousProvisionsAct. lg52.eligibleemployeesoftheCompanyareentitledto
receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both enrployees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage ol the covered employees' salary. The contributions. as specified under the law, are made to the
employee provident t'und organization (EpFO).

The total expenses recognised in the statentent of profit and loss during the year on account ol'delined contribution plans arnounted to Rs. .-1. I I

Lakhs (PY: Rs.2.05 Lakhs)

@\ut{-$-

/ loss
Particulars As at 31.0J.2025 AsatJl.03.2024

Actuarial loss arising from changes in f.inancial ar.t-,rrfrtlrrs 0.22 003
Actuarial loss arising from changes in denrographic assrnlptio,l,
Actuarral loss arising lionr changes in experience ad.iustntents s53
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 0.22 5.55

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.0J.2024
State and Centrai Securities

Bonds

Speoial deposits

Insurer nranaged funds

(vii) Assumptions

Particulars As at J1.03.2025 As at J1.03.2024
Discount Rate 6.52% 7.060/"
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 1s.00% t0% - ts%
Rate ol Return orr Plan Assels NA NA

Particulars As at 3l.0J.2025 As at J1.0J.2024
Base Liability t6.46 I l.l8
Increase Discount Rate br 0.5% (0 25) (0 7
Decrease Discount Rate hy 0.5% 025 0. 7
lncrease Salary Inflation by 05% 0.24 0. 6
Decrease Salary Inflation by 0.5% (0.24) (0. 6

Page 2
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Nupu r Recyclers Limited
CIN: L37l 00DL20t 9PLC344788
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year endecl March 3l, Z0Z5
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in l,akhs, unless othen,ise stated)

Note - J7: Segment Rcporting

1 08 - "Operartng Segmenrs"

Note - 38: Contingent Liabilities and conrmitment
(t)TheHoldrngCornpanvhasrecetvedadetrandOrderlorAY2022-23fiomthelncomeTaxDepartmentundersectronl56fbranalnountof'Rs 

1.i0.54.350

rrll the appeal rs drsposed ofI. the amoLrnt has been disclosed as a contrngent Irabilir]-

( rt) The l-loldr ng Company has received a dentand Order lor AY 2020-21 lrom the Inconre Tax Department under sectron I 47 lor an amount of Rs 2. I 7,9g.000

on tl'le sallle Till the appeal ts drsposed olJ. the anrount has been drsclosed as a conttngent llabrllty

scctlon I 43( I a ) lor an alnount ol Rs 44, I 0,3 80. The detnand prtrnartly penalns to llot provrd l ng the benef t ol the concessronal rates of tax prescrrbed rn Sect ron

oll the sanle l'rll tlre appeal is drsposed ofl. the arnourrt lras been disclosed as a contrnsetrt lrabrlrrv

(tv) 1'he Holdrng Company has provtded bank gLrarantee to IndraprasLha Gas I-rmrted Ibr Rs 2.6,t.825

Note - J9: Statcment of Related Party Disclosure

(a) List of related parties an(t relate(l partv relationship

Related party relationship Name of the reltted partv

Kev Management Personal (KI\,lP) Rajesh Gupta (Managrng Dlreclor)
Devender Kunrar Poter (Dtreclor)

Kapal Krrrnar Vohra (Director)

Sarleer Kunrar Rastogt (Drreclor)

Kaushal Pareek - (Drrector - Subsidrary,)
(Upto30 I214)

Deepak Cupta - (Drrector - Subsrdiary)

VarLur.lairr - (Drreclor - Subsrdrary,) (Upt<

01 07 24\

Yogendra Srrgh - (Drrector - Srrbsrdrarl,)

lupto :10 l2 24)

Arrsh .lain - (Drreclor - Srrbsrdrarl,)

Palakh.laiil (Director)

Nupur Crpla (Drrector)

Ilelativcs ol l(r!lP Shikha Cuptr

Anoop Car g

Kanta Ranr

Pn_va Carg

Sandltva Crrpla

Arrrshi Garg
Entities in rvhich I(IVIP / Relatives of I(NIP can exercise significant influence BR Hands lrrvestrnent Private Llntted

RGM Recl,clers P\1 Ltd (Upto ..1I 03 24)

Sunrer Chand Carg l-lUF

Nuprrr Metal

Rryesh Crrpta HUF

Black Tiger Adrrsorl Prrrate Lirniled

Unrnar Developers Pri\ale Lrnriled

Nupur Inli'atech Prrvale Lrrnrled

Usha Financral Services Linrited

d$u-^{-



I

Related transactions and balances

Nature ofTransaction Key
Management

Personnel
(KMP)

Relatives of
KIVIP

Entities in
which KMP /
Relatives of
KMP can

exercise
significant
influence

Total

I lntcrest on l-oan Paid
l3l March 2o2s

l3l March. 202+

I

I lnt.r"., Reccivcd
Ii t N,4arctr. ztrzs

li 
t March. 2oz.l

I Bo..o*,ing llepaymcnt
l3 I March. 1025

li I Marclr. 202+

I

I Borrorving Takcn

l3l March. 2025

lj 
I Marclr. 102+

ILoan & Atlvanccs Given
li I Malch. 1025

l3l Marclr. 202+

I o.rnr-.n, of Loan & Advanccs
li I March. 2025

li I Malch. 202q

I

I l)irectol' Rcmuneration

l-r I NIirrch. l02.i
li I Mare h. lt)l.l
I

lSalan
li I March. 1025

li I March. 2tt2+

52.20

50.71

62.83

50.67
49.82

I Rent Paid
li I Marclr. 2025

l.l I Marclr. 2U24
I

| \\,r.rr,,t i..r",l
I

l3 
I March. 2025

i I March. l()lJ

Bonus shares issucd
3l March. 2025

i I Maroh. 2024

P u rc hase

3l March. 202-5

i I March. 2024

Sales
3 I March. 2025
3l March. 2024

t 52.24

832.04

9.00

9.00

38.68

827.42

5.65
29.69

552
8 6t

494 50
1.428.45

477 50
1.428 45

t25 00
207.t I

r84.t I

r03 84

455.00

0.77

t.035. t2
4.676.t8

1.548. t6
8.107.40

5.65
29 69

5.52
8 6r

494.s0
t.480.65

s28.21

t.49t .28

125.00

207 |

184.t I

r03 81

50.(r7

49.82

9.00
9.00

645.92

t.ooi.zz

t.035.12
4.676.18

1,548. t6
8,107.40

Ab dl!,,,-{-



Balance Outstanding at the end of the year

Nature of Transaction Key
I\lanagement

Personnel
(KMP)

Relatives of
KIVIP

Entities in
which KMP /
Relatives of
KMP can

exercise

Total

lRemuneration Payable
ll I Marclr. 1025

l: t varch. zoz+
I

I I nt".".t Receivable
I

l3l March. 2025

lj 
I March. 2024

Trark Rcceivallle
3 I March. 2025

3 I March, 2024

Borrowings
3 i March. 2025

i I March. 2024

Loans and advances
3 I March. 2025

I I March, 2024

100
0.66

I12 54

t2.3t
7.47

587.91
290 76

67 00

1.00

0.66

t2.31
7.47

587.91

290.76

It254

67.00

Note - 40: Capital management

growth. Further, the Group ensures optirnal credit risk profile to maintain/enhance credit rating.

The Group detenrines the amount ofcapital required on the basis olannual operating plan and long-term strategtc plans. The funding requirernents are met

through rnternal accruals and long-term/short-term borrowings. The Group monitors the capital structure on the basis ol Net debt to equiry ratio and maturrt)

protile of'the overall debt portfolio olthe Group.

borrowings as reduced by cash and cash equivalents and margin money held with financial institLrtions

The tbllowrng table summarises the capital oltlre Group

Pa rticullr
As at

3 lsr I\'Iarch 2025
As at

3 lst ivlarch 2024

I I.770 78 R 55? tl

Debt

Shon-term bor:ou,ings (i) 715 45 61915

Lonc-lernr borrorvincs (ri 510 47 727 96

Less deposrls rvrlh tlnarcral nstrlutrorls (rr)

Less. Cash and cash equrralenls (rr') 412 5l 748 60

Net debt (i+ii-iii-ir,) 843.4 I s98.8 I

Total caDitrl (equifv + net 12,61+.19 9.1 56. t 3

debt lo capital ratio 007 007

ratro (EBITDA/Finance cosl) r3 43 l5 67

Note - 41: Impairment of Assets

In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (lndAS-36) on "lmpainnent olAssets" the Group has. during the year, carried out an exercise ofidentifoing

the assets that tnay have been irnpaired in respect ofcash generating unit in accordance with the said Indian Accounting Standard. Based on the exercise, no

irnpairrnent loss is required as at March 31,2025.

dANd*)-



Note - 42: Financial Instruments

Thrs note gives an overview of the srgnificance of financial instruments ior the Croup and provides additronal infbrmatron on balance sheet items that contain

financral rnstrunrents. The significant accounting policy in relation to flnancral rnstruments rs contained in Note I (E)(v).

a) Financial assets and liabilities

The fbllowing tables presents the carrying value and fair value ofeach category of financial assets and Iiabilities as at March 31 .2025 and March 3l .2024

As at 31.03.2025 in Lakhs
Pa rticulars Amortized Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Total carrying

qnrl fiir vqlrre

Financial Assets*
In ves tme n ts

Trade recervables

Cash and cash equrvalents

Other bank balances

Other financial assets

Financial Liability*
Borrowrngs

1'rade pavables

Other tinancral lrabrlrtres

1.568 32

4t2 5t
2.65

3.891 .00

| . t07.5 r.10757
r.568 12

412 5l
265

3.89 1.00

5,874,48 l, I 07.s7 6,982.05

1,255 92

0 13

249 22

I 455 g'

0 ti
249 2,

As at 31.03.2025 1.505.27 1.505,27

As at 31.03.2024 ({ in Lakhs)

dr$$.$(

Particulars Amortized Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Total carrying
and fair value

Financial,{ssets*

I nvestnrents

Trade recervables

Cash and cash equrvalents

Other bank balances

Other financral assets

Financial Liability*

Borrolvrngs

Trade pa,vables

Other flnancral I rabilitres

t.t95 9l
748 60

2.65

3.466.7 4

I .282 rl! I .282 rl9

1.19593

74u 60

265
3.466 7 4

5,413.92 1,282.49 6,696.41

t.347.4t
I t7.42

230 39

t,317 4t
lt7 42

230 39

As at 31.03.2024 t.695.22 1.69s.22



assets and Irabtltq,

(b) Fair value hierarchy

as described below

lbr rdentrcal assets or ltabtltttes. Thrs level olhrerarchy,rncludes GroLrp's investrnent il] quotes equrfy shares

does not hold any asset/ltabrll0,that fhll lnto thts category

that are not based on observable ntarket data (unobservabie rnputs) Group does not hold any asset/lrabtliry thar lall tnto thls category

Pa rticulars Level -l
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Quoted equrty lnstrurrents |.107 57 1.282.49

c) Financial risk managemena

(i) The Group's activities are prirnarily exposed to a rnarket rrsk arrsrng liom rnovement ln fbreign exchange r.e. tbrergn exchange risk. prrce rrsk

Risk Nature of risk and instrument effected Risk manaqement policies

Market risk - currrency risk

The fluctuatron in fbrergn cLlrrenc)/ exchange rates n'ta)

have a potentral impact on the staten'tent ol prolit and los:

tbr the rtems that are sublect to currenc) nsk rvhicl
rncl udes trade pay,ables

Group does not hedge rts lorergr

exchange nsk as rt is required tc

cornpletely pay lor the material ir
advance

Marke( rrsk - tnterest rate risk

Interesl rate nsk rs rneasured b),usrng the cash flou
sensrtrvrty fbr changes rn varrable Itterest rates An)
movernent in the relerence rates could have an rrnpact on

the Group's cash florvs as well as costs CroLlp does nol

have any borrowrngs at varia[rle rnterest rates. ThLrs. there

rs no rnterest rate risk lor the Croup

NA

Markel rrsk - other pnce rrsk

Declrne rn the value of'eqUtry" ,nstrlln]ents Croup has

invested rn equrry rnstruments of one Cornpany whose
shares are listed on the stock exchange 

-fhe prrce olthese
shares can rncrease/decrease whrch can etI'ect the valLre

The Holdrng Companv rs not
holdrng these shares fbr tradlng
rnstead l.hese shares have been held

by the Cornpany lor long ternr

pLrrposes as the Corrpanv sees value

rn these rnvestr'nents These

investr'nents are not actrvelv hedged

by the Holdrng Companv

Credrt rrsli

Credrt rrsk rs the risk of flnancral loss arrsrrg fionr coLrnter

party f'ailure to repay or seNtce debt accordrng to the

contractLral ternrs or obligations Credit risk enconrpasses

both the drrect risk ofdelault and the nsk ol-deterioratiorl
ol'credit\vonhrness as rvell as cot'lcentratton rrsks Th€

rnstrun]ent that are sub.lect to credit risk involves trade

recervables. investnrents. depostts and loans. cash and

cash eqLilvalents etc None of'the financial lnstrlln]enl.s ol
the Group resLrlts rn n'ratenal concentratron ol'credit rrsks

The Group has a polrcy of dealrrrg

onll, rvith credit worth), coLil)ter

pafires. other nsk n]anagen]ent
polrcres rnvolves credrt approval and

nronitorrng practices. coLilrterparR/

credrt polrcres and Irmrts

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk relers to the risk that the GroLrp cannot rreet
lts flnancial oblrgatrons. The o[.1ectrve ol' lrtlLrrdrtl, rrsk

Ir'ranagernent ls to nraintarn sutllclent Irqurdity'and ensLrre

that llnds are available lbr use as per reclurrenrcnts

The Group lnanages rts Irqurdiq
posltlons through rnternal cash flow
accrLlals other nsk l1'ranagement

policres rnvolves preparrng and

r'nonrtoilng tilrecasts of cash tlows.

cash rlanagerlent pol lcres

e,4" g)\tuc,"+-



ii) Liquiditv Risk - N'lnturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group's llnancral lrabilrtres lnto relevarlt rraturrt-v groupil]gs based on therr contractual maturlties

drscountrng rs not srgnrflcant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than I Year I-5Year More than 5 Year Total

As at 31.03.2025
Slron tenr horrowinqs 7I5 45

Long tenrl borrowinqs 540 41

Trade pa-vables 0. r3

Jther llnancral Irabrlitres 162.98 86 24

{,s at 31.03.2024
jhort tenn borrorvrrrgs 6l9 45 619.45

Long terrr borrowings 727 96 127 96

Trade P21,6[]95 I17 42 |7 4?

Other fi nancral liabilrtres 100.73 t29 66 230.39

(iii) Price Risk - Security price risk
Exposure rn equity

The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equit_v investrnents held by the Holding Cormpany and classified tn the balance sheet as lair value through

OCI

Equity price sensitivity analysis
The sensrtiviry- analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of'the year

lf'the equiry prices had been 5% higher/lower:

Other comprehensive income fbr the year ended 3 I st March 2025 would increase/decrease by INR 55.38 Lakh (tbr the year ended 3 I st March 2024:

rncrease/decrease by INR 64.12 Lakh) as a result ofthe change in fair value ofequity investment measured at FVTOCL

OP\--*
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Nupur Recvclers Limitcd
CIN: L37l 00DL20l 9PLC344788
Notes to consolidated financial statemcnts for fhe year ended March JI,2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lal<hs, unless ofherlyise stated)

NOTES ON ACCOTINTS
44 Disclosures for leases under tnd AS I I6 -.,Leases".

The Group has entered into shon term lease (less than one year) and license agreements lor taking warehouse space / olfice space on
rental basis

The specrfied disclosure r o1'these
Partic u la r

For the Year
ended March

tl,2025

For the \ ear
ended lVlarch

31,20?4

Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

r) Lease payrnents to Sandhya Cupta (Warehouse Space) 900 900
ilr)i..ease pa),ntents SLrdesh Kumar. Kavtta Gupta, Surlanlata GLrpta (OU)ce Spacq r0 0l 956

-fhe 
GroLrp has grvert refirndable, lnterest liee secuntv depostt.s r:rrder tlre agreen.tent

,15 Currency Transaction

46 Rarv material consumed

.17 Corporate

$ruog--

Nore ( r)

Foreign

Nature ofTransaction r'\s at
Jl i\'larch,

2025

i\s at
3l March,

2021
Value ol lmport on CIF Basrs 1Rau, Matenal arrd Stock rn Trade) 12,434 0t r6,551 02
l'u_!l," rI,,l',pon on CIF Basrs (For other Expense r e shrpprng arrd rnsurarrce) i4 00

Nature ofTransaction As at
3l i\larch,

2025

As at
3l lVIarch,

2024
Irlported ralv material 8.613 24 2.429 66
% ol' r nrported rar.r, mateTral t00% r 00%
rndrgenous raw rnaterial

% ol'indigenoLrs rari, nraterial 0% 0%

Socia I

Nature ofTrnnsaction As at
3l NIarch,

2025

,{s ,rt
3l l'Iarch,

2024
ArnoLlr'rt reqLlrred to be spent by the companl,dLrrrng the year i5 66 34 99
arroLrrt of expenditure incurred, 35 66 34.99
shorttall at the end olthe year
Iotal olprevrous years slrortlall
Reason fbr shortfall NA NA
Nature ol' CSR actl\/itres Ed ucation Educatrorr
Detarls of related party transactions, NrI NiI

rs grven belorv



Nupur Recyclers Limited
CIN: L37 I 00DL20 I 9PLC34:1788
Notcs to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

48 Disclosure on significant ratios

Reason tbr change rn ratio The Holding Company revenue has srgnrficantly reduced during the current year As a result of
thrs there ls a srgnrflcant changes rn ratro

Methodology:
l. Current Ratio = Current Asset / Current Liability
2. DebrEquity Ration = Total Debt / (Total Debt + Equity)

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = EBITDA / Finance Cost

4 Return on Equity Ratio = Profit After Tax / Total Equity

5. Inventory Turnover Ratio = Purchase / lnventory
6. Trade Receivable Turrrover Ratio = Revenue frorn Operatiorrs / Trade Receivable

7 . Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = Purchase / Trade Payable

8. Net Capital Turnover Ratro = Revenue tiorn Operations / (Current Asset - Current Liability)
9. Net Protit Ratio = Protit After Tax / Revenue tiom Operations

10. Return on Inveshnent = Net incorne on investrnent / Cost olEquity Investrnent

I l. Return on Capital Ernployed = Proflt Alter tax / (Total Equity + Total Debt)

49 Other Notes
(i) In the opinion olthe Board olDirectors and Management, all the assets other than, Properw. Plant and Equipment, lntangible assets

and non-current investments have a value on realisation in fie ordinary course olbusiness which is at least equal to the amount at

which they are stated.

(ii) Figures tbr the previous year have been re-grouped/ rearranged/ restated wherever necessan to make them cornparable u,ith those ol
the current vear

As per our report of even date

For I(RA & Co.
Chartered Accol"rntants

Rajat
Paltner

Membership No. 503 150

UDIN: 25503 I 50BMjBZW2386
Place: Dellii
Date:24.05.2025

For and on behall of the Board of Directors
N TIPTI R RECYC.-LERS LI i\,I I1'ED

Dcvender Kumar Poter

Drrector & CFO

DrN-08679602

Pa rticu lars As at
3l iVIarch,

2025

As at
Jl March,

2024

7o Change*

CLrrrent Ratlo

Debt-Equrty Ratro,

Debt Servrce Coverage Ratro

Retun] ol] Equrfy Ratro

lnventory tunrover ratro

Trade Recervables turnover ratlo

Trade payables turnover ratro

Net capital turnover ratro

Net profit ratro

I{eturn on Investment

Retunr on Caortal ernoloyed

8.57

010
t3 43

0 14

329
l0 09

NA

I 75

0 r0
(0 r4)

0 12

5.26

014
35.67

0 I0
804

20 08

18902

4.08

004
082
009

63%

-29%

-62%

3l%
-59%
-50%

NA

-51%

t86%
-|7%
44Yo

Al-V
Ilajesh Gupta

Managrng Drrector

DIN-0 r94 1985

,,,GJk
Cornpany Secretary

(M No - I0105)


